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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Coforge Business Process Solutions Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Coforge Business Process Solutions Private Limited (“the
Company ), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss,
including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement
of Changes in Equity for the year then ended. and notes to the financial statements, including a summary
of material accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us . the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act. 2013, as amended
(“the Act™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India. of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, its
profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended
on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs),
as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the *Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’ section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics™ issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the board report. but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

[n connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income. cash flows and changes in
equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 , as amended, specified under section 133
of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities: selection and application of appropriate accounting policies:
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent: and the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether

due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements. management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if. individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error.
as fraud may involve collusion. forgery, intentional omissions. misrepresentations, or the override

of internal control.

+  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act. we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation. structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding. among other matters. the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable. related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act. we give in the
“Annexure 17 a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act. we report, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and beliet were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion. proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in paragraph
2(h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules.
2014 (as amended):

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account:

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules. 2013, as amended, specified under section 133 of the Act;

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2025
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act:
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(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls. refer to our separate Report in

“Annexure 2" to this report;

(g) The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the
Company for the year ended March 31. 2025:

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules. 2014, as amended in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

iii.

vi.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its financial statements — Refer Note 33 to the financial statements;

The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accounting
standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including
derivative contracts — Refer Note 17 to the financial statements;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or
entity(ies). including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding. whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee. security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall. whether, directly or indirectly. lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee. security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material
misstatement.

The interim dividend declared and paid by the Company during the year and until the date
of this audit report is in accordance with section 123 of the Act.

Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting
software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail
(edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the vear for all relevant
transactions recorded in the software except that, audit trail feature is not enabled for direct
changes to data when using certain access rights, as described in note 39 to the financial
statements. Further. during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of
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audit trail feature being tampered with in respect of other accounting software.
Additionally. the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the statutory
requirements for record retention.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants
] Firm Rétrayn Number: 101049W/E300004

/N n oo

artner
Membership Number: 504649
UDIN: 25504649BMOUIM2767

Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: May 2, 2025
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Annexure 1 to the Independent Auditor's Report referred to in paragraph 1 under 'Report on
Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements' section of our report of even date

Re: Coforge Business Process Solutions Private Limited (“the Company™)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangibles
assets.

(b) All Property, Plant and Equipment were physically verified by the management in the
previous year in accordance with a planned programme of verifying them in phased manner
once in two years which is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the
nature of its assets.

(c) The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the
Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee)
are held in the name of the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its Property. Plant and Equipment (including Right of
use assets) or intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2025.

(e) There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and
rules made thereunder.

(a) The Company’s business does not require maintenance of inventories and. accordingly,
the requirement to report on clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in
aggregate from banks during the year on the basis of security of current assets of the
Company. Based on the records examined by us in the normal course of audit of the
financial statements, the quarterly returns/statements filed by the Company with such banks
are in agreement with the audited / unaudited books of accounts of the Company. The
Company do not have sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in
aggregate from financial institutions during the year on the basis of security of current
assets of the Company.

(a) During the year the Company has not provided advances in the nature of loans. stood
guarantee or provided security to companies. firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any
other parties. During the year the Company has provided Loans to fellow subsidiary as
follows:

(INR in Mn)
Loans
Aggregate amount granted/ provided during the year 663
Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect of above cases 503

(b) During the year the Company has not made investments, provided guarantees. provided
securitv and advances in the nature of loans to companies. firms. Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties. During the year Company has granted loans and the terms
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(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

and conditions of the grant of loans to company are not prejudicial to the Company's
interest.

(¢) The Company has not granted advances in the nature of loans to companies. firms.
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. The Company has granted loan during
the year to company where the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest
has been stipulated. and the repayment or receipts are regular.

(d) There are no amounts of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted to companies.
firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties which are overdue for more than

ninety days.

(e) There were no loans or advance in the nature of loan granted to companies, firms.
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties which had fallen due during the year.

(f) The Company has not granted any advances in the nature of loans, either repayable on
demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. As disclosed in note 11 to the financial
statements, the Company has granted loans repayable on demand to Company. Of these
following are the details of the aggregate amount of loans granted to related parties as
defined in clause (76) of section 2 of the Companies Act. 2013:

Related Parties

Aggregate amount of loans/ advances in nature of loans
- Repayable on demand INR 665 Mn |
Percentage of loans/ advances in nature of loans to the total loans 100% |

There are no investments, guarantees, and security in respect of which provisions of
sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable. There are no Loans in
respect of which provisions of section 185 of the Companies Act. 2013 are applicable.
Loans in respect of which provisions of section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are
applicable have been complied with by the Company.

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts
which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies
Act and the rules made thereunder. to the extent applicable. Accordingly. the requirement
to report on clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not in the business of sale of any goods or provision of such services as
prescribed. Accordingly. the requirement to report on clause 3(vi) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory
dues including goods and services tax. provident fund. employees’ state insurance. income-
tax. sales-tax. service tax. duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other
statutory dues applicable to it. According to the information and explanations given to us
and based on audit procedures performed by us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect
of these statutory dues were outstanding. at the year end, for a period of more than six months

from the date they became payable.
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(b) The dues of goods and services tax. provident fund. employees’ state insurance. income-
tax. sales-tax, service tax. duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax. cess. and other
statutory dues have not been deposited on account of any dispute. are as follows:

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

Name of Nature of Amounts Period to which Forum where
Statute Dues (in INR Mn) amount relates dispute is
pending
Income Tax | Income 0.4 | Assessment Year Commissioner
Act, 1961 Tax 2017-18 of Income Tax
(Appeals)
| Income Tax | Income 0.1 | Assessment Year Commissioner
| Act. 1961 Tax 2018-19 of Income Tax
(Appeals)
Income Tax | Income 4 | Assessment Year Assessing
Act. 1961 Tax | 2020-21 Officer
Income Tax | Income 106 | Assessment Year Commissioner
Act. 1961 Tax 2022-23 of Income Tax
(Appeals)

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction. previously unrecorded in
the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income
during the year. Accordingly. the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the
payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution
or government or any government authority.

(c) Term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

(d) The Company did not raise any funds during the year hence, the requirement to report
on clause (ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company
has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations
of its subsidiaries. associates or joint ventures.

(f) The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries. joint ventures or associate companies. Hence. the requirement to report on
clause (ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer/ further public offer
(including debt instruments) during the year and hence, reporting under clause (x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the company.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
{fully or partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and
hence. the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.
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(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(a) No material fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company has been
noticed or reported during the year.

(b) During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 has been filed by cost auditor/ secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT — 4 as
prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government.

(c) As represented to us by the Management, there were no whistle blower complaints
received by the Company during the year.

(a) The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act. 2013.
Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the

Company.

(b) The Company is not a nidhi company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(c) The Company is not a nidhi company as per the provisions of the Companies Act. 2013.
Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 188 of Companies
Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements. as required by the applicable accounting standards. The provisions of section
177 are not applicable to the Company and accordingly the requirements to report under
clause 3(xiii) of the Order insofar as it relates to section 177 of the Act is not applicable to
the Company.

(a) The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

(b) The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for the
period under audit have been considered by us.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(a) The provisions of section 43-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are
not applicable to the Company. Accordingly. the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(a)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance
activities. Accordingly. the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(b) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(¢) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.
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(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(xx)

(d) There is no Core Investment Company as a part of the Group, hence, the requirement
to report on clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year. The Company has
not incurred cash losses in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly
requirement to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 32 to the financial statements, ageing
and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities.
other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting
the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention. which causes us to believe that any
material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within
a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an
assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor
any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(a) In respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are required
to be transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act (the Act), in
compliance with second proviso to sub section 5 of section 135 of the Act. This matter has
been disclosed in note 36 to the financial statements.

(b) There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are required to be
transferred to a special account in compliance of provision of sub section (6) of section 135
of Companies Act. This matter has been disclosed in note 36 to the financial statements.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLLP
Chartered Acgpuntants

QO

per Amt

P

Membership Number: 504649
UDIN: 25504649BMOUIM2767

ner

Firm Re istrstion Number: 101049W/E300004

AN

irmani

Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: May 02, 2025
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ANNEXURE 2 To The Independent Auditor’s Report of Even Date on the Financial Statements
of Coforge Business Process Solutions Private Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Coforge
Business Process Solutions Private Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with
our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI™).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business. including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™)
and the Standards on Auditing. as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls. both issued by ICAI Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements. assessing the
risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,

whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these financial

statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to these Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
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fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company: (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company: and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition. use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls. material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion. the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note issued by the [CAT.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Acgauntants
ICC!)Firm 2gi trajon Number: 101049W/E300004

er Amil rmani

lembership Number: 304649
UDIN: 25504649BMOUIM2767

Place of Signature: Gurugram
Date: May 2, 2025




COFORGE BUSINESS PROCESS SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN : U72200PN2001PTC204300
Standalone Balance Sheet

(All amounts in Rs Mn unless otherwise stated)

< As at As at
Particulars Note No March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3a 618 594
Right-of-use assets 27 283 131
Other intangible assels 3b - 1
Financial assets
Investments 4 633 633
Other financial assels 5a 131 93
Income tax assets (net) 6 - 11
Deferred tax assets (net) 7 88 88
Other non-current assets 8a 34 1
Total non - current assets 1,787 1,552
Current assets
Financial assets
Trade receivables 9 1,628 813
Cash and cash equivalents 10a 625 408
Other bank balances 10b - 25
Loans 1M1 500 -
Other financial assets 5b 33 32
Other current assels 8b 182 128
Total current assets 2,968 1,406
Total assets 4,755 2,958
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 12 9 9
Other equity 13 3,151 2,343
Total equity 3,160 2,352
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Boerrowings 14a 3 -
Lease liabililies 27 187 44
Provisions 15a 189 156
Total non - current liabilities 379 200
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 14b 1 -
Trade payables 16
Total outstanding dues to micro enterprises and small enterprises 3 3
Tolal outstanding dues to creditors other than micro enterprises and 781 160
small enterprises
Lease liabilities 27 15 101
Other financial liabilities 17 102 47
Other current liahilities 18 44 34
Provisions 15b 48 61
Currenl tax liabilities (net) 19 122 -
Total current liabilities 1,216 406
Total liabilities 1,595 606
Total equity and liabilities /755 2,958
The accompanying notes are an integral parl of standalone financial statements 1-486 /
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COFORGE BUSINESS PROCESS SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN : U72200PN2001PTC204300

Standalone statement of Profit and Loss
(All amounts in Rs Mn unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended  For the year ended

Parti =

articuiars Note No.  * yiarch 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Income
Revenue from operations 20 5,593 3,819
Other Income 21 582 591
Total Income 6,185 4,410
Expenses
Employee benefits expense 22 2,705 2,134
Finance costs 23 29 20
Depreciation and amorlisation expense 24 240 288
Other expenses 25 1,490 739
Total expenses 4,464 3,181
Profit before tax 1,721 1,229
Tax expense A
(2) Current tax 302 202
(b) Deferred tax 1 (12)

303 190
Profit for the year 1,418 1,039
Other comprehensive income
I. (i) ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(a) Remeasurement gains/(losses) of defined benefit plan (1) 33
(b) Income tax relating to items that will be not be reclassified to profit or loss - (8)
(1) 25
Il. (i) ltems that may be reclassified to profit or loss
(a) Fair value changes on derivatives designated as cash flow hedge, net (7) 29
(b) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss 1 (7)
(6) 22

Total comprehensive income for the year 1,411 1,086
Earnings per equity share (of Rs 10 each) attributable to owners of the
Company :
Basic and diluted (in Rs.) 26 1,570 1,150

The accompanying notes are an integral part of standalone financial statements 1-46

As per our report of even date
For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Bog
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COFORGE BUSINESS PROCESS SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN : U72200PN2001PTC204300
Standalone statement of cash flows

(All amounts in Rs Mn unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

A. Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Profit on sale of property, plant and eguipment
Finance cost
Interest income
Net interest income on financial assets measured at amortised cost
Dividend income
Unrealised net foreign exchange (gain)/loss

Changes in opearating assets and liabilities :
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables
(Increase)/decrease in other financial assets
(Increase)/decrease in other assets
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables
Increase/(decrease) in other financial liabilities
Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities
Increase/(decrease) in provisions

Cash generated from operations
Income taxes paid (net)
Net cash inflow from operating activities (A)

B. Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Payments for intangible assets

Loan given to fellow subsidiary

Loan repayment by fellow subsidiary

Fixed deposit placed during the year

Dividend received

Interest received

Net cash (used in)/inflow from investing activities (B)

C. Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds of borrowing from bank

Repayment of borrowings

Repayment of principal portion of lease liabilities
Interest paid

Dividends paid

Net cash used in financing activities (C)

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per the cash flow statement

Cash and cash equivalents as per above comprise of the following

Balance with Banks
Deposits with ariginal maturity less than 3 months
Total [Refer Note no 10a]

1,721 1,229
240 288
(4) (1)
29 20
(18) 9)
(9) (7)
(469) (483)
7 (6)
(224) (198)
(832) (347)
(36) 16
(87) 47
631 (149)
54 (4)
10 (61)
18 19
1,255 552
(169) (233)
1,086 319
(109) (42)
5 2
. (18)
(665) .
165 .
25 (25)
469 483
13 9
(97) 409
4 &
0 P
(144) (145)
(29) (20)
(603) (583)
(772) (748)
217 (20)
408 428
625 408
237 194
388 214
625 408




COFORGE BUSINESS PROCESS SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN : U72200PN2001PTC204300
Standalone statement of cash flows

Reconciliation of liabilities from financing activities for the year ended March 31, 2025

Additions/ impact of

Particulars As at April 1, 2024 Ind AS 116 Repayments Finance cost As at March 31, 2025
Lease liabilities 145 301 (173) 29 302
Borrowings - 4 (0) 0 4
Total liabilities from financing activities 145 305 (173) 29 306
Reconciliation of liabilities from financing activities for the year ended March 31, 2024

Particulars As at April 1, 2023 Add':ﬁ"i’;”:‘,‘::“ °f  Repayments Finance cost  Asat March 31, 2024
Lease liabilities 267 23 (162) 17 145
Borrowings - - - - -
Tatal liabilities from financing activities 267 23 (162) 17 145

The accompanying notes are an integral part of standalone financial statements
As per aur repor! of even dale

For S.R. Batliboi & oeiates LLP
Chartered Accountants
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COFORGE BUSINESS PROCESS SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN : U72200PN2001PTC204300
Standalone statement of changes in equity

(All amounts In Rs Mn unless otherwise stated)

a. Equity share capital

Particulars Amount
Balance at April 1, 2023 9
Changes in equity share capital during the year -
Balance at March 31, 2024 9
Changes in equity share capilal during the year -
Balance at March 31, 2025 9

bh.Other equity

Other
Reserves and surplus Comprehensive
— Income Total t:'cther
., equity
General Retained Cash flow
reserves earnings Hedging reserve
As at April 1, 2023 237 1,625 (22) 1,840
Profit for the year - 1,039 - 1,038
Other Comprehensive Income - 25 22 47
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - 1,064 22 1,086
Dividend paid during the year - (583) - (583)
As at March 31, 2024 237 2,108 - 2,343
Profit for the year - 1,418 - 1,418
Other Comprehensive Income - (b (6) (7)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year - 1,417 (6) 1,411
Dividend paid during the year - (603) - (603)
As at March 31, 2025 237 2,920 (6) 3,151
The accompanying notes are an integral part of standalone financial [
1-46

statements
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Chartered Acco, nts

ICAI Rirm Registrafion N)u 101049W/E300004

s

Membership No. 504649
Place :Gurugram

Date : May 2, 2025

For and on behalf of the Board|of Dirgctars

Coforge Business Process Spluti

(- Ladlr,

Saurabh Goel
Director

DIN : 08589223
Place : Greater Noida
Date : May 2, 2025




COFORGE BUSINESS PROCESS SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

1 CORPORATE INFORMATION
Coforge Business Process Solutions Private Limited is a Company limited by shares, incarporated and domiciled in India. The Company isa
leading customer focused, technology driven service provider in the offshiore Business process outsourcing services industry. The principal activity
of the Campany consists of export of data processing services and business information Technology services,

2 SUMMARY OF MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1 Statement of compliance

The standalone financial stalements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards ("Ind AS") notified under the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and relevant amendments rules issued thereafter, which includes Standards natified under section 133
of the Companies Acl, 2013 and relevant provisions of Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act"), as applicable.

2.2 Basis of preparation and presentation

The standalone financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following:
_Certain financial instruments (including derivative instruments) that are measured at fair value; and

-Define benefit plans (plan assets measured al fair value)

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for services.

Fair value is the price thal would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date, regardless of whether that price Is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair
value of an asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take those
characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these standalone financial statements Is determined on such a basis, except for leasing transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 116, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair valued, such as value in use quantification as per Ind AS 36.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the falr value measurement in its entirety, which are described
as follows:

Level 1 Inpuls are quoted prices (unadjusted) in aclive markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, thal are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly;

and
Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

2.3 Use of estimates

The preparation of the standalone financial statements in conformity with the recognition and measurement principals of Ind AS requires the
Management to make estimates and assumptions considered in the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure relating to contingent
liabilities as at the date of standalone financial statements and the reported amounts of income and expenditure during the reported year. The
Management believes that the estimates used in preparation of the standalone financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Future resulis
could differ due 1o these estimates and the differences between the actual results and the estimales are recognised in the periods in which the
results are known / materialise.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment
The Company reviews the useful life of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting period. This reassessment may resull in change
in deprecialion expense in future periods,

Provision for income tax and valuation of deferred tax assets

The Company's major tax jurisdiction is in India. Significant judgement is involved in determining the provision for income taxes, including the
amount expected to be paid or recovered in connection with uncertain tax positions.

The Company reviews the carrying amount of deferred tax assets at the end of each reporting period. The policy for the same has been explained
under Taxation note.

Impairment of trade receivable

The impairment provisions of financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected timing of collection. The Company uses
judgment in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the expecled credit loss calculation based on the Company's history of
collections, customer's creditwarthiness, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reparting period. The
Company uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables and contract assets. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e.. by geography, product type, customer lype and rating, and coverage
by letters of credit and other forms of credit insurance).




COFORGE BUSINESS PROCESS SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Other estimates

The preparalion of standalone financial statements involves estimates and assumplions that effects the reported amount of assets, liabilities,
disclosurs of contingent liabilities at the date of standalone financial statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses for the
reporting period. Specifically, the Company estimates the probability of collection of accounts receivable by analysing historical payment patlerns,
customer concentralions, customer credil worthiness and current economic trends. If the financial condition of a eustomer deteriorates, additional
allowances may be reguired.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are based on historical experience and olher factors, including expectations of future
events thal may have a financial impact on the Company and that are believed 1o be reasonable under the circumstances.

2.4 Revenue recognition

Rendering of services:

The Company derives revenue primarily from data processing services and business information Technology services. The Company's
arrangements with customers are time-and-malerial, fixed-price, fixed capacity / fixed monthly, transaction based.

‘Revenues from customer contracts are considered for recognition and measurement when the coniract has been approved by the parties to the
contracl, lhe parties to contract are committed to perform their respective obligations under the contract, and the contract is legally enforceable.
Revenue is recognized upon transfer of control of promised products or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration which
the Company expects to receive in exchange for those products or services. The Company presents revenues nel of indirect taxes in its statement

of Profil and loss,

Method of revenue recognition :

Revenue on time-and material contracts are recognized over time as the related services are performed. Revenue from fixed-price, fixed-capacity
and fixed monthly contracts, where the performance obligations are salisfied over time, is recognized as per the percentage-of completion method.
The performance obligations are satisfied as and when the services are rendered since the customer generally obtains control of the work as it
progresses.

Revenue from transaction based contracts is recognised at the amount determined by multiplying transaction rate to aclual transactions laking
place during a period.

Contract balances

Revenues in excess of invoicing are treated as contracl assets while invoicing in excess of revenues are treated as conlract liabilities. The
Company classifies amounts due from customer as receivable or contract assets depending on whether the right to consideration is unconditional.
If only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration Is due, the amount is classified as receivable, Otherwise, such amounts
are classified as contracl assets.

Contract costs

Incremental costs of obfaining a contracl and costs incurred in fulfiling a contract with customer are recognised as contract costs assets and
amorlized over the term of the contract on a systemalic basis. The Company pays deal bonus lo its employees for contracl with customers in
accordance with Company's policy which is classified as cost to obtain a contract, The deal bonus is amortized over the term of the contract on a
systematic basis is included as part of employee benefils experise.

Others

Contract modifications are accounted for when additions, deletions or changes are approved either to the contract scope or contract price. The
accounting for modifications of contracts involves assessing whether the services added to an existing contract are distinct and whether the pricing
is at the standalone selling price. Services added that are not distinct are accounted for on a cumulative catch-up basis. Services that are distinct
are accounted for prospectively, either as a separate contract, if the additional services are priced at the standalone selling price, or as a
termination of the existing conlract and creation of a new cantract if not priced al the standalone selling price.

The Company accounts for variable considerations like, volume discounts, rebates and pricing incentives to customers and penalties as reduction
of revenue on a systematic and rational basis over the period of the contract. The Company estimates an amount of such variable consideration
using expected value methad or the single most likely amount in 2 range of passible consideration depending on which method better predicts the
amount of consideration lo which the Company may be entifled and when it is highly probable that a significant reversal of cumulative revenue
recognized will nat occur when the uncertainty associated with the variable consideration s resolved.

2.5 Other Income

Dividend Income

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder's right to receive the payment has been established (provided that it is
prabable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably) .

Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of
income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on time basis, with reference to the principal outstanding and at the effeclive interest
rate applicable.

2,6 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation/ amortisation and impairment losses, if any. The cost of langible
assets comprises its purchase price net of any trade discounts and rebates, any import duties and other taxes (other than those subsequently
recoverable from the tax autharities), any directly attributable expenditure on making the asset ready for its intended use, other incidental expenses.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefils are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.




COFORGE BUSINESS PROCESS SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

27 Intangible assets

Acquired intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulaled amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with respect to any changes in eslimate. The effect of change in estimate is accounted for on a
prospective basis. Inlangible assels with indefinite useful lives thal are acquired separalely are carried al cost less accumulated impairment losses.

2.8 Depreciation/ amortisation
Depreciable amount for tangible assetls is the cost of asset less its estimated residual value. Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis on
straight line method as per useful life estimated by the management. The useful life of assets given below :

Plant and equipments 5to 15 Years
Computers and peripherals 31to 5 Years
Furniture and fixtures 10 Years
Building 60 Years
Vehicles B Years

Leasehold improvements are amortized over a period of three years or period of lease whichever is less.

Intangible assels (acquired) is amortised over a period of 1 to 3 years based on useful life as assessed by management. Internally generated
assels are assessed individually for their useful lives.

Low value assets: Assets whose unit purchase value is <= Rs, 5,000/-is depreciated at 100% on prorate basis in a year from the date of
capitalization.

2.9 Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.
Financial assets (except Investments in subsidiaries) and financial liabilities are inftially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assels or financial liabllities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly atiributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in statement of profit and loss.

A)  Financial assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposils with banks, Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with an original maturity of three
months or less from the date af acquisition), highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject
to insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash-equivalents include cash on hand, in banks and demand deposits with banks are
considered part of the Company's cash management system.

Financial assets at amortised cost
Financial assets are subsequently measured al amortised cost if these financial assets are held within a business model whose objective is to hold

these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and contractual terms of financial assel give rise on specified dales to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income ("FVTOCI")

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held within business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows on specified dates that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding and selling financial assets.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL")

Financial assets are measured at fair value through profit or loss unless it measured al amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income on initial recagnition. The transaction cost directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and liabilities al fair value through profil or
loss are immediately recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Impairment and derecognition of financial assets:

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the assel expire, or when it transfers the financial
asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of the ownership of the asset to another party. On derecognition of a financial asset In its entirety,
the difference between the assel carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

The Company applies expecled credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assels measured al amortised cosl, lrade
receivables, other contractual rights to receive cash or other financial assst. The Company is identifying the specific amounts of financial assets
which has become bad during the year and providing the credit |oss.




COFORGE BUSINESS PROCESS SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

B) Financial liabilities and equity:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using effective interest methad. For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the
balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

Equity instrument:
An equity instrument is a contract that evidences residual interest in the assels of the company after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
recognised by the Company are recognised al the proceeds received nel off direct issue cost.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
The Company derscognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Company's obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or [oss.

C) Derivative financial instruments

The Company uses derivative financial instruments viz. forward currency contracts to hedge ils exposure lo foreign currency risk in forecast
transactions and firm commitments. Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive
and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative. Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly
to profit or loss, except for the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in OC| and later reclassified to profit or loss.

Cash flow hedges

For the purpose of hedge accounting, cash flow hedges are designaled when hedging the exposure lo variability in cash flows that is either
attributable to a particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction or the foreign currency risk in
an unrecognised firm commitment. At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Company formally designates and documents lhe hedge
relationship to which the Campany wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge.
The documentation Includes the Company's risk management objective and strategy for undertaking hedge, the hedging/ economic relationship,
the hedged item or transaction, the nature of the risk being hedged, hedge ratio and how the entity will assess the effectiveness of changes in the
hedging instrument's fair value in offsetting the exposure to changes in the hedged item's fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk.
Such hedges are expected to be highly effective in achieving offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows and are assessed on an ongoing basis to
determine that they actually have been highly effective throughout the financial reporting periods for which they were designated.

The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedaing instrument is recognised in OCI and accumulated in the cash flow hedge reserve, while any
ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

Amounts recognised as OC| are transferred to profit or loss when the hedged transaction affects profit or loss, such as when the forecast sale
OCCurs.

When a hedging instrument expires, or is sold or terminated, or when a hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge accounting, any cumulative
deferred gain or loss remains in eguity until the forecast transaction occurs, When the forecast transaction is no longer expected to oceur, the
cumulative gain or loss and deferred costs of hedging that were reported in equity are immediately reclassified to stalement of profit and loss.

2.10 Foreign currency transactions and translations

The functional currency of the Company is the currency in which primary economic environment of the entily operates i.e., Indian Rupee. The
standalone financial statements of the Company are presented In Indian Rupee.

Transaclions in foreign currencies are recorded at the monthly exchange rate which approximately equals to the exchange rate on the date of
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominaled in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency closing rates of exchange at
the reporting date,

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent of
exchange differences which are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on foreign currency borrowings that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or construclion of qualifying assets, are capitalized as cost of assets.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cosl in foreign currencies are not retranslated. Income and expense
items in foreign currency are translated at the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that
period, in which case the excharige rales at the dates of the transactions are used.

211 Employee benefits
Employee benefits include provident fund, employee state insurance scheme, gratuity fund, compensaled absences.

Defined contribution plan
The Company's contribution to provident fund and Employee's Pension Scheme are considered as defined contribution plans and are charged as
an expense based on the amount of contribution reqguired to be made as and when services are rendered by the employees,




COFORGE BUSINESS PROCESS SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Defined benefit plan

For defined benefit retirement benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method, with actuarial
valuations being carried out at the end of each annual reporting period. Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses and the return on
plan assels (excluding net interest), is reflected immediately in the balance sheet with a charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive income
in the period in which they occur. Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately In retained earnings and is
not reclassified to profit or loss, Past service cost is recognised in profit or loss in the period of & plan amendment. Net interest is calculated by
applying the discount rate at the beginning of the period to the net defined benefil liability or asset. Defined benefit costs are calegorised as follows:

a) service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments and settlements);

b) net inlerest expense or income; and

c) remeasurement.

The Company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in profit or loss in the line item ‘Employee benefits expense'. Curtailment
gains and losses are accounled for as past service costs, Remeasurement impact is accounted in other comprehensive income (OCI).

Short-term employee benefits
The undiscounted amount of short-term employee benefits expected lo be paid in exchange for the services rendered by employees are recognised
during the year when the employees render the service. These benefils include performance incentive and compensated absences which are

expected to oceur within twelve months after the end of the period In which the employee renders the related service.
The cost of shorl-term compensated absences is accounted as under ;

a) In case of accumulaled compensaled absences, when employees render lhe services that increase their entitlement of future compensated
absences; and
b) in case of non-accumulating compensated absences, when the absences occur.

Long-term employee benefits

Compensaled absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee renders the related
service are recognised as a liability at the present value of the defined benefit obligation as at the balance sheet date less the fair value of the plan
assets out of which the obligations are expected to be seltled.

2,12 Employee Share based payments

The Share-based compensation benefits are provided to cerlain employees by the Parent Company under "Coforge Employee Stock Option Plan
2005",

The fair value of options granted under the above plan is recognized under employee benefits expense based on advice received irom the Parent
company. The total amount to be expensed s determined by reference to the fair value of the optians granted: -

-including any market performance conditions -

- excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance vesting conditions (e.g. profitability, sales growth targets and remaining an
employee of the entity over a specified time period), and

-including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (e.g. the requirement for employees to save or holdings shares for a specific period of time)

The total expense is recognized over the vesting period, which is the period over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied,
based on advice received from the holding company

2.13 Leases

The Company as lessee:

The Company's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for buildings. The Company assesses whether a conlract contains a lease, at
inception of a contracl. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideralion. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses
whether:

a) lhe contract involves the use of an identified asset
b)  lhe Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and

c) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset

Al the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use (ROU) asset and a corresponding lease liability for all lease
arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of 12 months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these short-
term and low-value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the
lease. Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assels and lease
liabilities includes these oplions when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.
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The ROU assels are inilially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or
prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any inilial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less
acocumulated depreciation and impairment losses. ROU assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. ROU assets are evaluated far recoverabilily whenever events or changes In
circumstances indicate that their carnying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the
higher af the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual assel hasis Unless the assel does not generate cash
flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit
(CGU) to which the asset belongs,

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are discounted
using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental barrowing rates. Lease liabilities are remeasured
with a corresponding adjustment to the related ROU assel If the Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise an extension or a
termination optian. Lease liabllity and ROU assels have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease payments have been classified
as financing cash flows,

2.14 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / {loss) after lax (including the post tax effect of extraordinary items, if any) by the
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit / (loss) after
tax (including the post tax effect of exiraordinary items, if any) as adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to expense or income (net of any
attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic
earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity shares which could have been jssued on the converslon of all dilutive polential
equity shares, Potential equily shares are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to equity shares would decrease the net profil per share
from continuing ordinary operations. Patential dilutive equity shares are deemed lo be converted as at the beginning of the period, unless they have
been issued at 2 later date. The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the shares been actually issued at fair
value (i.e. average market value of the outstanding shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each period
presented. The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted far share splits / reverse share splits and bonus shares,
as appropriate.

215 Taxation
Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable income for the year as determined in accordance with the provisions of the Income Tax Act,

1961.

Deferred tax is recognised on lemporary differences between the carrying amounts of assels and liabilities in the standalone financial slatements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temparary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that il is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which those deduclible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred lax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from the Initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced lo the extent thal it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the assel to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assels are measured at the tax rates thal are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset
realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporling period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences lhat would follow from the manner in which the Company
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or seltle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profil or loss, except when they relate to ftems that are recognised in other comprehensive income (OC)
or directly in equily, In which case, the current and deferred lax are also recognised in OCI or direclly in equity respectively.

2.16 Provisions & contingent liabilities

A provision is recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions (excluding retirement benefits and compensated
absences) are not discounted to their present value and are determined based on a best estimate required to seltle the obligation at the balance
sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to refiect the current best estimates. Contingent liabilities are disclosed in
the notes to the standalone financial statements. Contingent assets are not recognised in the standalone financial statements.

2.17 Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

At the end of each reporting period or more frequently if wants or changes in circumsiances indicate that it might be impaired; the Company reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss (if any). When it Is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be Identified, corparate assets are
also allocated to individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets nol yet available for use are tested for Impairment al least annually, and whenever
there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount Is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value In use. In assessing value in use, lhe estimaled future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the eslimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amaunl of the asset (or
cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate
of its recoverable amounl, so thal the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairmient loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

2.18 Statement of cash flows

Statement of cash flows are reporied using indirect method, whereby profit is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any
deferrals or aceruals of past or fulure cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company
are segregated based on the available information.

2.19 Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.
An asset is treated as current when itis:
- Expected lo be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
- Held primarily for the purpose of trading
- Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
- Cash or cash eqguivalent unless restricted from being exchanded or used to setile a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period
All other assets are classified as non-current.
A liability is eurrent when:
- Itis expected lo be settled in normal operating cycle
- Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading
- Itis due to be setlled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.
The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred lax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assels and liabilities.
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents.
The Company has identified twelve months as its operaling cycle.

2.20 Rounding of amounts
All amounts disclosed in the standalone financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest millions, unless otherwise stated.

(This space has been left intentionally blank)
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2.21 Recent Accounting Pronouncements

New and amended standards adopted by the Company.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2024 daled 12 August 2024 to amend
the following Ind AS which are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2024, The Company applied for the first-time these
amendments.

(i) Ind AS 117 Insurance Contracts

The Ministry of corporate Affairs (MCA) notified the Ind AS 117, Insurance Contracts, vide notification dated 12 August 2024, under the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2024, which is effective from annual reporiing periods beginning on or after 1 April 2024.

Ind AS 117 Insurance Contracls is a comprehensive nhew accounting standard for insurance contracts covering recognition and measurement,
presentation and disclosure. Ind AS 117 replaces Ind AS 104 Insurance Contracts. Ind AS 117 applies to all types of insurance contracts,
regardless of the type of enlities that issue them as well as to certaln guarantees and financial instruments with discrelionary parlicipation features;
a few scope exceplions will apply. Ind AS 117 is based on a general model. supplemented by:

+ A specific adapiation for contracts with direct participation features (the variable fee approach)

+ A simplified approach (the premium allocalion approach) mainly for short-duration contracts

The application of Ind AS 117 had no impact on the Company's Standalone financial statements as the Company has not entered any contracts in
lhe nature of insurance contracts covered under Ind AS 117,

(i) Amendment to Ind AS 116 Leases — Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

The MCA notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, 2024, which amend Ind AS 116, Leases, with respect
to Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback.

The amendmenl! specifies the requirements that a seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising in a sale and |easeback transaction, to
ensure the seller-lessee does not recognise any amount of the gain or loss that relates to the right of use it retains.

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or afler 1 April 2024, The amendment does not have a material impact on the
Company's standalone financial statements.

Standards notified but not yet effective
There are no standards that are notified and not yet effective as on the date.

(This space has been left intentionally blank)
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COFORGE BUSINESS PROCESS SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Rs Mn unless otherwise staled)

4. Investments

Particulars Asat fs at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Investments (At cost):
Investment in equity instruments (Unquoted)
Wholly owned subsidiaries
Coforge BPS America Inc, USA : 6,650,000 equity shares @ USD $1 each fully paid up 420 420
{March 31, 2024 : 6,650,000 equily shares @ USD $1 each fully paid up)
Coforge BPS Philippines Inc. Philippines : 152,787,649 equity shares @ Peso 1 each fully 213 213
paid up (March 31, 2024; 152,787,648 equity shares @ Peso 1 each fully paid up)
633 633
Aggregate amount of unguoted investments 633 633
5. Other financial assets
As at As at
Rattinan March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
a) Non-current (Considered good, unless otherwise stated)
Security deposits (Unsecured, considered good) 126 88
Deposits with bank with maturity period mare than 12 months under lien for bank guarantee 5 5
131 93
b) Current (Considered good, unless otherwise stated)
Derivalive conlracts
-Foreign currency forward contracls 13 -
Loans and advances to employees - 3
Security deposils 14 27
Accrued Interest 6 1
Others - 1
33 32
6. Income tax assets (net)
As at As at
Fertioulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Advance tax - 1,476
Less : Provision for income tax - (1,263)
Less : Tax expense for the year (202)
- 1

Total Income tax assets

(This space has been left intentionally blank)
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Notes forming part of Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts in Rs Mn unless otherwise stated)

7. Deferred tax assets (net]

Particulars As At As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Deferred tax assels 156 119
Deferred tax lizbilities (68) (31)
88 88

Net deferred tax assets

Significant components of deferred tax (liabilities)/assets for the year ended March 31, 2025 are as follows :

Recognised in

P Opening Recognised in other .

Particulers Balance Profit and Loss comprehensive Cleking: Balahos
income

(i} Tax impact of difference between carrying amount of fixed assets in the 25 : 4) - 21

standalone financial statements and as per the income tax calculation
(i) Impact due to provisions and others 3 M - 2
(i) Employee benefit obligations 55 2 - 57
(iv) Derivatives 0 = 1 1
{v) Right-of-Use assets (a1) (37) - (68)
(vi) Lease Liabilities 38 as = 75
Tatal B8 (1) 1 88
Significant components of deferred tax (liabilities)/ for the year ended March 31, 2024 are as follows :

Recognised in

i Opening Recognised in other "

Ratticlkas Balance Profit and Loss  comprehensive Clasing Balanes
income

(i} Tax impact of difference between carrying amount of fixed assets in the 26 (1) - 25

standalone financial statements and as per the Income tax calculation
(i) Impact due lo provisions and others 3 (0) » 3
(ii} Employee benefit obligations 57 6 a) 55
{iv) Derivatives 7 = (7 0
(v} Right-of-use assets {69) 38 - (31)
(v} Lease Liabilities B7 (31) - 36
Total 91 12 (15) B8

(This space has been left intentionally blank)
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8. Other assets

(All amounts in Rs Mn unless otherwise stated)

Bai As at As at
Al March 31,2025  March 31, 2024
a) Non-current
a) Prepaid expenses 1 1
b) Contracl cost* 33 -
34 1
b) Current
Balance with Governmen! authorities
Unsecured, considered good 152 115
Unsecured, considered doubtful g 9
Less: Impairment allowances on balances wilh Government authorities (9) (9)
152 115
Prepaid expenses 13 13
Contract cost* 13 -
Advance 1o suppliers 2 0
182 128

* Conlract cosl includes INR 46 Mn(Previous year Nil) as Incremental cost of obtaining a contract There is a corrospanding liabilily of INR 22 Mn(Previous year Nil) as

against these contract cost assets.

9. Trade receivables

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

Unsecured, considered good

Trade receivables 193 13
Trade Receivables from related parties (Refer note 29) 1,435 682
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss ] %
1,628 813
Trade Receivable- Unbilled * 315 235
Trade Receivable- billed 1,313 578
Provision - unbilled revenue - -
Pravision - billed revenue - -
1,628 813
* Trade receivables includes amounts yet to be billed to customers and dependent only on passage of time (unbilled).
Trade Receivahle Ageing analysis at March 31,2025
Particulars Not Due Lessthan 6 | 6 months -1 1-2 year 23 year More than 3 Total
months year years
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered good 1.260 368 - - - - 1,628
|(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered doubtful e 5 - - = - -
(iii) Disputed Trade Receivables - considered good - - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables — considered doubtiul - - - - a ‘ =
Total 1,260 368 - - - - 1,628
Trade Receivable Ageing analysis at March 31,2024
Particulars Not Due Less than & | 6 months -1 1-2 year 2.3 year Mare than 3 Total
months year years
(i} Undispuled Trade Receivables - considered good 308 507 - - - - B13
(il) Undispuled Trade Receivables - considered doubtful - - - - - - -
(ili) Disputed Trade Receivables - considered good - - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables — considered doubtful - - - . - - -
Total 306 507 - - - - 813
10a. Cash and cash equivalents
As at As at

Particulars

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Balances with banks:
a} In current accounts
b) In EEFC accounts
Deposits with original maturity less than 3 manths

108 5
129 188
388 214
625 408

(This space has been left inlentionally blank)
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10b. Other Bank balances

As at As at

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Balances with banks:

a) In deposits account = 25
- 25
11. Loans
Particulars As at As at

March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

Unsecured, considered good
Loans to related party” (Refer note no 29) 500

500 -

*The Company has glven loan amounting INR 500 Mnh to Coforge DPA Private Limited (Subsidiary of Coforge Limited) al interest rate of 8.35% for its working capital
reguirement which is repayable withn one year of disbursement date and maximum outstanding (including accrued interest) during the year INR 503 Mn.

12. Equity share capital

Particulars A bl
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Authorised share capital :

2,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each (March 31, 2024 - 2,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each) 20 20

Issued and subscribed capital comprises:

903,160 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each (March 31, 2024 - 803,160 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each) 9 9

Tatal issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital 9 9

i) Reconciliation of the number of equity shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year:

Particulars Nurmbisr of
Amount
shares

Number of shares outstanding as at April 1, 2023 903,160 9,031,600
Add: Additional shares issued during the year o

Number of shares oulslanding as at March 31, 2024 903,160 9,031,600
Add: Additional shares issued during the year &

Number of shares outstanding as at March 31, 2025 903,160 9,031,600

ii) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares:

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs.10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vole per share. In the event of
liguidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The
distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

1li) Number of shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares in the Company are as follows:

Class of shares /| Name of the shareholder

As at March 31, 2025

As at March 31, 2024

Number of % holding Number of % holding in that

shares held  in that shares held class of shares
Equity shares with voting rights
Coforge Limited 722527 80% 722,527 80%
I/s. Fifth Third Mauritius Holdings Limited 180,633 20% 180,633 20%
iv) Shareholding of Promoters : Shares held by promoters at March 31, 2025 and March 31,2024 :

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
% change
0, o,
Promoter's Name N, afataris | Eftaml during the No.of |y ortotal shares | * SHENgE during
shares vaaF shares the year
Coforge Limited 722,627 B0% - 722,527 BO% 3%
Total 722,527 80% - 722,527 B0% 33%
13. Other equity
i As at As at
fardoolas March 31,2025  March 31, 2024
General reserve” 237 237
Retained earnings** 2,920 2,106
Cash flow Hedging reserve ™ (6) -
3,151 2,343
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Notes forming part of Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(All amounts in Rs Mn unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2025

As at

March 31, 2024

General Reserve

Opening balance 237 237
Increaseldecrease during the year = =
Closing balance 237 237
Retained earnings
Opening balance 2,106 1,625
MNet profit for the year 1418 1,038
Iltems of Olher comprehensive Income recognized directly in retained earnings
Add { (Less): Remeasurement gain/(loss) on defined benefil plans (1) 25
Less : Appropriations - Dividend paid (603) (583)
Closing balance 2,920 2,106
Cash flow hedging reserve
As at April 1 2023 (22)
Changes in fair value of hedging instruments 29
Deferred tax (7)
As at March 31 2024 D)
Changes in fair value of hedging instruments (7)
Deferred lax 1
As at March 31 2025 [6)
* General reserve rapresents appropriation of profits.
** Retained eamings comprises of prior and current year's undistributed eamings.
*** Cash flow Hedging reserve amount indicates Mark to Market Gain/(loss) on outstanding forward currency contracts (net of tax).
14, Borrowings

As at As at

Particulars

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Secured Loans
a) Non current
Term |oans from banks [Refer note (a) and (b) below]

) Current
Temn loans from banks [Refer nole (a) and (b} below]

1

1

(a) Term loans from Banks - are secured by way of hypathecation of the vehicles financed. The loan amounts along with interest are repayable over the period of 39 to 60
manths (equal monthly instalments) from the date of sanction of loan. The interest rate on above |loans are within the range of B.B5% to 8.95%. per annum.
(b) The carrying amount of assels pledged as security for current and non-current borrowings are disclosed in note 3.

15. Provisions

Particulars As st Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
a) Non-current
Gratuity (net) (Refer note 30) 134 109
Employee compensated absences 55 47
189 156
b) Current
Gratuity (net) (Refer note 30) 29 3
Employee compensated absences 18 30
48 61
16. Trade payables
As at As at
Pattinlisre March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Trade payables
Total oulslanding dues of Micro enterprises and small enlerprises 3 3
Total outstanding dues of creditars other than Micro enterprises and small enterprises* 781 160
784 163
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(All amounts in Rs Mn unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

‘“Includes due to related parties (refer note 29)

a) Coforge BFS America Inc, 192 80
b) Coferge Limited 185 1
c) Coforge BPS Philippines Inc. 271 -
d) Coforge Technologies S.R.L 8 -
656 81

Trade Payable Ageing analysis at March 31, 2025

Particulars Not due Les:l:::m 1 1-2 year 2-3 year Total
(i) MSME 3 - - - 3
(il) Others 320 140 1 “ 470
(i) Unhilled and accrual 311 - - - 1
Total 643 140 1 - 784
Trade Payable Ageing analysis at March 31, 2024

Particulars Not due LBS::::“ 1 1-2 year 2-3 year Total
(I} MSME 3 - - - 3
(i) Others 18 62 - = 80
{lii) Unbilled and accrual 80 - - - 80
Total 101 52 - - 163

17. Other financial liabilities

Particul As at As at
articulars March 31, 2025  March 31, 2024
Capital Creditors 1 7
Other Employee benefits payable 80 40
Financial liabifities at fair value through OC/

Derivatives- Foreign currency forward contracts 21 %
102 47

18. Other current liabilities

Particula As at As at
artieutars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Statutory dues including provident fund and tax deducted al source 44 34
44 34

19. Current tax liabilities (net)

R As at As at
Particulars March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
Provision for income lax 1,011 &
Tax expense for the year 302 -
Less : Advance tax (1,191} E=

122 -
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20. Revenue from operations

Particulars For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Sale of services 5,593 3,818

5,593 3,819

Timing of revenue recognition
Services transferred over time 5,593 3,819
Revenue from operations 5,593 3,819

Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised in the standalone statement of profit and loss with the contracted price

Revenue as per contracted price 5778 3,866
Hedge (loss) / gain (30) (27)
Discount (including volume discount) (155) (20)
Revenue from operations 5,593 3,819

Payment terms

Company's revenue involve paymenl terms less than Ninety days from the date of satisfaction of performance obligation.
Disclosures related to revenue from operations

a.Disaggregate revenue information

The table below presents disaggregated revenues from operations by geography.

For the year ended  For the year ended

Gragraphy March 31,2025  March 31,2024
United States of America 5,153 3,792
Europe, Middle East and Africa 60 8
Asia Pacific - 4
India 380 15
5,593 3,819

Performance obligations and remaining performance obligations
The remaining performance obligation disclosure provides the aggregate amount of the transaction price yel lo be recognized as at the end of the reporiing period

and an explanation as to when the Company expects to recognize these amounts in revenue. Remaining performance obligation estimates are subject to change
and are affected by several factors, including terminations, changes in the scope of contracts, periodic revalidations, and adjustment for revenue that has not

materialized and adjustments for currency.
There is no remaining performance obligation as the contracts entered by the Company are typically those contracts where invoicing is on time and material basis.

21. Other income

For the year ended  For the year ended

Pardolars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
a) Interest income from financial assels at amortised cost

- Bank deposits 12 9

- Loans to fellow subsidiary 5] -

- Others a9 7
b) Dividend income

-Dividend income from subsidiaries 469 483
¢) Other non-operating income

- Cross charge of support services 64 68

-Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment 5 2

- Miscellaneous Income 7 12
d) Other gains or losses

- Gain on exchange fluctuations (net) 20 10

592 591
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Notes forming part of Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

22. Employee benefits expense

(All amounts in Rs Mn unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

Salaries, wages and bonus 2452 1,931
Contribulions to provident (and other) funds 170 137
ESOP expenses (Refer note 37) 14 -
Graluity 32 41
Staff wellare expenses 37 25
2,705 2,134

23. Finance costs

Pt For the year ended  For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Interest on

- Lease liabilities (refer nole 27) 29 17
- Others 0 3
29 20

24, Depreciaiton and amortization expense
For the year ended  For the year ended

Particulars

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

Depreciation of Property, plant and equipment (refer note 3a)

Depreciation of Right of use assets (refer note 27)
Amortisation of Intangible assets (refer note 3b)

79 100

160 162

1 18
240 288
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Notes forming part of Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Rs Mn unless otherwise stated)

25. Other expenses

For the year ended

For the year ended

i o March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Electricity & water charges 36 28
Rent 48 6
Repairs and maintenance
- Building 42 29
- Computer, vehicle and office maintenance 162 155
Insurance 3 3
Rates and taxes 1 4
Communication expenses 49 38
Travelling and conveyance 133 99
Business promotion 255 134
Expenditure towards corporate social responsibilies activities (Refer note 36) 24 21
Legal and professional 145 105
Outsourcing cost 550 62
Recruitment expenses 17 19
Membership & subscription 1 1
Security charges 29 28
Payments to auditors (Refer note (a) below) 4 3
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment - 1
Bank charges 2 1
Miscellaneous expenses 1 2
1,490 739

Note (a) Details of payments to the auditors (excluding taxes)

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

As auditor:

Audit fees Bl 3

Tax audit” 0 0
In other capacities

Certification fees” 0 0
Total payments to auditors 4 3

*'0' represents amount is below the rounding off narm adopted by the Company.
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Notes forming part of Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Rs Mn unless otherwise stated)

26. Earnings per equity share (Basic and diluted)

Reconciliation of number of equity shares used in the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share is set out below:

For the year ended  For the year ended

PariEdlas March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company used in calculating earnings per share 1,418 1,038
Weighted average number of equity shares 903,160 903,160
Par value per share (Rs.) 10 10
Earnings per share (Rs.) (Basic and diluted) 1,570 1,150
27. Leases

The Company has taken building on |eases for a period ranging from 1 to 3 years.The Company has discounted lease payments using the weighted
average incremental borrowing rate ranges between 8% and 9.1%.
The changes In the carrying value of ROU assets are as follows :

For the year ended  For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Opening balance 131 276
Additions 312 38
Deletion = (14)
Depreciation (160) (169)
Closing balance 283 131

The aggregate depreciation expense on ROU assets is included under depreciation and amortization expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities is as follows:

For the year ended  For the year ended

Pardculars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Current |lease liabilities 115 101
Naon-current lease liabilities 187 44
Total 302 145

The movemnent in lease liabilities during the year ended is as follows :

For the year ended  For the year ended

Etiinlang March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Opening balance 145 267
Additions 301 37
Finance cost accrued 29 1T
Deletions - (14)
Payment of lease liabilities (173) (162)
Closing balance 302 145

The details of the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as al March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 on an undiscounted basis are as follows :
For the year ended  For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Less than one year 136 108
One to five years 208 45
More than five years - -
Total 344 153
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Notes forming part of Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Rs Mn unless otherwise stated)

The following are the amounts recognised in statement of profil or loss:

For the year ended  For the year ended

paredlars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 160 168
Interest expense on lease liabilities 29 17
Expense relating to shorl-term leases and leases of low-value assets (included in other expenses) 46 6
235 192

The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its |ease liabilities as the current assets are sufficient to meet the obligalions
related to lease liabilities as and when they fall due.

Rental expense recorded for shori-term leases (including low-value lease assets) Rs.46 Mn for the year ended 31 March 2025. (Previous year Rs. 6
Mn).

The Company had total cash outflows for principal portion of leases of Rs. 144 Mn in current year (Previous year Rs. 145 Mn).

The aggregate depreciation on ROU assets has been included under depreciation and amortisation expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
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Notes forming part of Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

28, Financial instruments

A) Capital management

(Al amounts in Rs Mn unless otherwise stated)

The Company's policy is to maintain & strong capilal base so as to maintain investor and creditor confidence and to sustain fulure development of the business, The Company
monitors the return an capital as well as the level of dividends on ils equily shares, The Company's objective when managing capital is lo maintain an optimal slructure so as

10 maximize shareholder value,

Particulars Az s 2t
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Total equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company 3,160 2,352
As a percentage of total capital 100% 100%
Total Capital 3,160 2,352
Dividends
During the year the direclors have recommended the payment of Interim dividend. 603 583

The Company is predominantly eguity financed which |s evident from the capltal struclure lable.

cash and bank balances.

B) Categories of financial instruments
The falr value of financial instruments by calegories as follows:

Further, the Company has always been a net cash Company with adequate

Particulars

Carryin

g Value

Fair Value

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

Financial assets
Measured at fair value through profit or loss/OCI

Foreign currency forward contracts 13 - 13 -
Measured at amortised cost
a) Trade receivables 1,628 813 1,628 813
b) Cash and cash equivalents 625 408 625 408
c) Other bank balances = 25 - 25
d) Loans 500 = 500 -
€) Other non current financial asset 13 93 131 83
f) Loans and advances to employees - 3 - 3
g) Other current financlal t 20 29 20 29
Total 2,917 1,371 2,917 1,371
Financial liabilities
Measured at fair value through profit or loss/OCI

Faoreign currency forward contracts 21 - 21 -
Measured at amortised cost
a) Borrowings 4 - 4 -
b) Trade payables 784 163 784 163
c) Other financial liabilities 81 47 81 47
d) Lease liabilities 302 145 302 145
Total 1,192 355 1,192 355

Note : Investments in equily instrumenis (unquoled) are carried at cost.

The carrying amounts of current portion of trade receivables, security deposits, deposits with bank, cash and cash equivalents,Borrowings, frade and other payables,
Other financial liabilities are considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their short term nature.
The fair values of security deposits were calculated based on cash flows discounted using a current lending rale.
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Fair value hierarchy

'Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

'Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly {i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
prices).

Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabililies that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). Fair values are determined in whole or in part using a
valuation model based on assumptlions thal are neither supported by prices from abservable current markel transactions in the same Inslrument nor are they based an
available market data.

As at As at

Fakticlas March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets
Financial assets designated at FVTPL/OCE
Foreign currency forward contracts - 13 - - s -
Total - 13 = - - -
Financial Liabilities
Financial Liabilities designated at FVTPL/OCI:
Foreign currency forward contracts - (21) - = = ke
Total - (21) - B 5 - |

There have been no transfers among Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 during the year.

The management assessed thal fair value of cash and short-term deposits, trade receivables, trade payables and other current financial assets and liabilities approximate
their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments. The fair value of the financial assats and |iabilities is included at the amount at which the
instrument could be exchanged in & current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liguidation sale,

At the end of the reporting period, there are no significant concentration of credit risk for the financial assets designated as FVTPL. The carrying amount reflected abave
represents lhe company's maximum exposure lo credit risk for such Financial Assets.

C) Financial risk management

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. The Company's primary focus is to foresee the unpredictability of
financial markets and seek to minimize potential adverse effects on its financial performance. The primary market risk lo the Company is foreign exchange risk, The Company
has constituted & Risk Management Committee, which is responsible for developing and monitoring the Company's risk management policies. The company seeks to
minimize the effects of these risks by using derivative financial instruments to hedge risk exposure. The use of Financial derivatives is governed by the Risk Management
Policy approved by group management, which provides written principles on foreign exchange risks, interest rate risks, credit risks, the use of financial derivatives and non-
derivatives instruments, and the investment of excess liquidity. The Company does not enter into or trade financial instruments, including derivatives financial instruments, for

speculative purpose.
The Corporate Treasury funclion reports to Parent Company's Treasury department, that monitors tasks and policies implemented to mitigate risk exposure.

The Company's financial sk management is supported by the finance department
- protect the Campany's financial resulls and position from financial risks

- maintain market risks within acceptable parameters, while optimising returns; and
- protect the Company's financial investments, while maximising relurns.

i) Management of credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company arising from counter party failure to meet its contractual obligations. Gredit risk encompasses of both, the direct risk of
default and the risk of deterioration of creditworthiness as well as concentration of risks. Credit risk Is controlled by analysing credil limits and creditworthiness of customers on
a continuous basis to whom the credit has been granted after necessary approvals for credit.

Financial instruments that are subject to concentrations of credit risk principally consist of trade receivables, lpans, Investments, unbilled revenues and cash & bank balances.
The carrying value of the financial assels represents the maximum credit exposure. Bank balances are maintained with banks having high credit rating. Other financial assets
mainly consists of Security deposit.

Trade receivables
The Company assesses the customers credit quality by taking into account their financial positlon, past experience and other factors. The Company's exposure to credit risk is
influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The demographics of the customer, including the default risk of the industry and country In which the

cuslomer operates, also has an influence on credit risk assessment,

Geographic concentration of credit risk
The Company has geographic concentration of trade receivables, net of allowances as given below:

R As at As at
grap March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

USA 1,345 795

Others 253 ik

i) Management of liquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they become due. The Company's approach o managing liguidity Is to ensure that
it will have sufficient funds to meel its liabilities when due without incurring unacceptable losses. In doing this, management considers both normal and stressed conditions. A
material and sustained shortfall in the cash flow could undermine the Company's credit rating and impair investor confidence. The Company's treasury depariment is
responsible for liquidity, funding as well as settlement management. In addition, processes and policies related lo such risks are averseen by senior management.
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The following lable shows the maturity analysis of the Company's financial liabilities based on contractually agreed undiscounted cash flows:

As at March 31, 2025 Lessthan 1 1-2 Years 24 Years pone tar Total

year years
Borrowings 1 1 2 - 4
Trade payables 784 - - - 784
Lease liabilities 115 76 111 - 302
Other financial liabililies 102 . g 5 102
As at March 34, 2024 Lessthan? 4 o Years 24 Years Voie s Total

year years
Trade payables 163 - = - 163
Lease liabilities - 101 44 - - 145
Other financial liabilities 47 - - = 47
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(All amounts in Rs Mn unless otherwise stated)
iil) Management of market risk
The Company's size and operalions result in it being exposed to the fallowing markel risks that arise from its Use of financial instruments:
«interest rale risk
= currency risk
The above risks may affect the Company's income and expenses, or the value of its financial instruments. The objective of the Company's management of market risk is to
maintain this risk within acceptable parameters. while optimising returns. The Company's exposure to, and management of, these risks is explained below:

MANAGEMENT POLICY POTENTIAL IMPACT OF RISK SENSITIVITY TO RISK

(1) Interest rate risk

The Company is not exposed to interest rate risk NA The Company has taken loan from bank with fixed interest rate so
because it does not have any floating rate barrowings. there is no significant concern of interest rate chage risk,

(i) Currency risk
The Company's exchange risk arises from its foreign|Cansidering the countries and  economic|The Company has risk management team and treasury team which
aperations, foreign currency revenues and expenses, |environment in which the Compary operates, its{manitars and manage the risk due to exchange fluctuation. For the
A significant portion of the Company’s revenue are in|operalions are subject lo risks arising from|year ended March 31, 2025 for every 1% increase/decrease in
the foreign currencies, while a significant poertion of its|fluctuations in exchange rates in those countries.|respective foreign currencies compared to fupctional currency of the
expenses is in Indian rupees The risks primarily relate to fluctuations in US|Company would impact operating margins before tax by 2.65% (March
Doliar against lhe funclional currency of thel31, 2024 - 2.99%).

Company. As a result, If the value of the Indian
rupee appreciates relative lo these foreign
currencies, the Company's profils measured in
rupees may decrease. The exchange rate
betwsen the Indian rupee and these fereign
currenicies has changed substantially in recent
periods and may conlinue to  flucluale
substantially in the future.

(iii) Equity price risk
The Company is not exposed to equity price risk
because it doesnot have any investments in mutual NA The Company is nol exposed to equity price risk.

funds,

Unhedge foreign currency exposure
Non-derivative forgign currency exposure as of March 31,2025 and March 31,2024 In major currencies is as below !

Net financial Assets Net financial Liabilities
Currencies As at As at As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
USD/INR 1,310 745 316 68
GBF/INR 6 - - -
EURO/INR 7 4 12 -
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Notes forming part of Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 21, 2025
(All amounts in Rs Mn unless otherwise stated)

Sensitivity
The Sensitivity of profit or loss lo changes in the exchange rales arises mainly from foreign currency denominated financial instruments and the impacl on other companents of
equity arises from foreign forward exchange contracls designated as cash flow hedges.

Impact on Profit before tax Impact on other components of equity
For the year ended | Far the year ended | For the year ended | For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
USD Sensitivity
INR/USD - Increases by 1% 10 7 0 0
INR/USD - Decreases by 1% (10) (7) (a) [{8)]
EURO Sensitivity
INR/EUR - Increases by 1% 1] - - -
INR/EUR - Decreases by 1% 1] - - -
GBP Sensitivity
INR/GEP - Increases by 1% i] - - -
INR/GEP - Decreases by 1% ] -

D) Derivative financial instruments

The Company is exposed to foreign currency fluctuations en foreign currency assets/liabilities and forecasts cash flows denominated in foreign currency. The Company
manages ils foreign currency risk by hedging transactions that are expecled lo oceur within 2 maximum 12-month period for hedges of forecasted sales. The counter party in
lhese derivative instruments is bank and the company considers the risk of non-performance by counter party as non-material. At 31 March 2025, the Company hedged 75% of
its expected foreign currency sales. Those hedged sales were highly probable at the reporting date.

The following table presents the aggregate contracted principal amounts of the Company derivative contracts oulstanding al the end of the reporting period:

USD Mn
As at

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2025

March 31, 2024

3

Non-designated derivative instruments (Sell): 37

The foreign exchange forward contracts malure between 0-1 year. The lable below analyses the derivalive financial instrumenls inlo relevant malurity groupings based on the
remalning period as at the reporling date:

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2025

Particulars

MNon- designated derivalive instruments (Sell):

Not later than 6 months- Amount (USD Mn) 22 21
Average forward rate USD/INR B5.39 81,26
Later than & months but not later than 1 year- Amount (USD Mn) 15 13

87.29 83.56

Average forward rate USD/INR

Hedge effectiveness is determined at the inception of the hedge relationship, and through periodic prospective effectiveness assessments to ensure that an ecanomic
relationship exists between the hedged item and hedging instrument, including whether the hedging instrument is expected to offset changes in cash flows of hedged items.

If the hedge ralio for risk managemenl purposes is no longer oplimal but the risk management objeclive remains unchanged and the hedge continues to qualify for hedge
accounting, the hedge relationship will be rebalanced by adjusting either the volume of the hedging Instrument or the volume of the hedged item so that the hedge ratio aligns
with the ratio used for risk management purposes. Any hedge ineffectiveness is calculated and accounted far in profit or loss at the time of the hedge relationship rebalancing.
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(Al amounts in Rs Mn unless otherwise stated)
28, Related party disclosures
A) Related parties where control exists
Interest in subsidiaries
The Company's subsidiaries at 31 March 2025 are sel out below. Unless alherwise stated, they have share capital consisting solely of equity shares that
are held directly by the Company and the proportion of ownership interests held equals the voting righls held by the Company. The country of
incorporation or registration is also their principal place of business.

Sr. Place of Ownership interest held by the
No. business/ Company
Name country of Principal Activities
incorporatio As at As at
n 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Direct subsidiaries
1 |Coforge BFS Philippines Inc. Philippines 100 100 |Data processing services and
other incidental technical services.
2 |Coforge BPS America Inc. UsA 100 100 |Data processing services and
other incidental technical services.
Stepdown subsidiaries
3 |Coforge BPS North Carolina LLC UsA 100 100 |Data processing services and
(wholly owned subsidiary of Coforge EPS America Inc) other incidental technical services.

B) Other Related parties with relationships

Name of the related party

Description of relationship

Coforge Limited

Coforge Inc.

Coforge DPA Frivate Limited
Coforge U.K. Limited

Coforge Smartserve Limited
Coforge DFA NA Inc

Coforge Solutions Private Limited
CIGNITI Technologies inc.

CIGNITI Technologies Limited
Coforge Technologies S.R.L

Fifth Third Mauritius Holding Limited
Fifth Third Bank,Mational Association
Fifth Third Global Services Inc

Mr. Madhusudan Hegde

Mr. Saurabh Goel

Mr. Manish Kumar Sarraf

Mr. John Burns

Mr. Adrian Paull

Mrs.Tanuja Sardesai

Parent Company

Fellow Subsidiary Company

Fellow Subsidiary Company

Fellow Subsidiary Company

Fellow Subsidiary Company

Fellow Subsidiary Company

Fellow Subsidiary Company

Fellow Subsidiary Company

Fellow Subsidiary Company

Fellow Subsidiary Company

Entities having significant influence
Entities having significant influence
Entities having significant influence
Executive Director

Executive Director

Non executive Director

Non executive Director

Non executive Director (From Oclober 17,2023)
Company Secretary (Till April 30,2023)

Notes:

(i) The above information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of informatien provided by the Company,

which has been relled upon by the auditors.

(i) There are no amounls wrilten-off/written back or provided for during the year in respect of debls due fromflo related parties.
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C) Related party transactions and balances outstanding
Related party transactions during the period ended March 31, 2025 and balances outstanding as at March 31, 2025

Nature of transactions Subsidiary  Entities with Parent KMP Entities in
Company significant Company/Fellow which KMP ean
Influence subsidiary exercise
Companies significant
influence

Revenue from operations

Fifth Third Bank,Maticnal Association - 794 - - =
" (-) =) ) (=)
Coforge BPS America Inc 2671 - - £ =
(2,653) (=) (=) =) (=)
Coforge Inc. - - 40 e 2
-} = (33) (-) )
Cofarge U.K. Limited £ - B E =
(-} (=) (8) =) =)
Coforge BPS Philippines, Inc - - = S =
(4) - (=) (=) )
Coforge Limited - - 386 - i
(=) =) (15) ) (=)
Coforge DPA NA Inc - - 17 = a
(-) () ) (-) ]
Coforge Solutions Private Limited - = 9 - =
) (-) (=) (=) (-)
CIGNITI Technologies inc. - 3 0 - -
(=) ) ) ) {-)
CIGNITI Tech. Inc. (CA) - - 9 - 2
(=) () ) ) (=)
Other Income
Coforge Limited d - 22 - =
(=) {-) (27) (- =)
Coforge BPS America Inc. 21 - E - -
(22) (=) ) (=) (=)
Coforge BPS Philippines, Inc. - - B u i
(3) (=) (-} (=) )
Coforge Smartserve Limited % - 20 - x
) (-} (14) ) )
CIGNIT| Technologies Limited - - 0 i =
=) ) (-) ) (=)
Coforge DPA Private Limited % - 8 - -
) (=) (-) ) (=)
Receiving of services
Coforge BPS America Ine 253 - - - -
(170) () () ) )
Coforge Limited - - 306 - o
(-) ) (181) ) (=)
Coforge BPS Philippines, Inc. 274 - B _ =
(-) ) =) - {-)
Coforge Technologies S.R.L - - 37 = =
() ) ] ) )
Reimbursement of expenses to :
Coforge BPS America |nc 197 - = - =
) ) ) (-) )
Coforge Limited 2 = 41 a =
) ) (8) -) )
Recovery of expenses from :
Coforge BPS America Inc & - i a &
(2) ) (0] (=) )
Coforge BPS Philippines, Inc 0 - - - =

() ) ) ) 9
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C} Related party transactions and balances outstanding
Related party transactions during the period ended March 31, 2025 and balances outstanding as at March 31, 2025

Nature of transactions Subsidiary  Entities with Parent KMP Entities in
Company significant Company/Fellow which KMP can

Influence subsidiary exercise

Companies significant

influence

Coforge Smariserve Limited = A 0 = =
) ) (0) (-) )

Coforge Limited = - 17 - =
=) ) (24) {-) )

CIGNITI technology Inc - - 0 - -

Key Management personnel compensation
Short term employee benefits - - s w =

Posl employment benefits - - % - =

) (=) (=) (0) )

Commission and Silling fees - - = 3 -
-} (= {-) (3) )
Dividend paid
Coforge Limited = [ 483 = i
(-) ) (466) () (=)
Fifth Third Mauritius Holding Limited - 121 - - . -
() (117) (9] () (=)
Dividend received
Coforge BPS Philippines, Inc. 469 - = 5 &
(483) ) ) () )
Loans given
Coforge DPA Private Limited - - 665 - -
) 9] () {-) (=)
Loans repayment - - 165 = =
Coforge DPA Private Limited () (-) {-) (-) ()
Deposit paid
Coforge Limited - - 20 = a
() ) () () 5]
Balances outstanding
Trade receivables
Fifth Third Bank,National Association - 710 = u -
(-) () ) ) -
Cofarge Limited - - 228 - =
{-) (=) (26} (=) )
Coforge DPA NA Inc - - 13 . =
) ) © ¢ 3
Coforge BPS America Inc 468 - A = =

Coforge BPS Philippines, Inc. - - = - -
Coforge SmartServe Limited - e
Coforge U K. Limited -
Cofarge, Inc. - <
Coforge Solutions Private Limited - = q = 5

CIGNITI Tech. Inc. (CA) i - q A %
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C) Related party transactions and balances outstanding
Related party transactions during the period ended March 31, 2025 and balances outstanding as at March 31, 2025

Nature of transactions Subsidiary  Entities with Parent KMP Entities in
Company significant Company/Fellow which KMP can
Influence subsidiary exercise
Companies significant
influence

Trade payables

Coforge BPS America Inc. 192 - - - -
(80) ) - () )
Coforge Limited - - 185 - -
{-) (=) (1) ) (-)
Coforge BPS Philippines, Inc. 271 = = = 4
) ) ) ) )
Coforge Technologies S.R.L - - 8 - -
(=) ) ) (=) ()
Deposit Recelvable
Coforge Limited - - 20 - -
) (@] ) (-) ()
Loans Receivable
Coforge DPA Private Limited - - 500 - -
) ) ) ) )
Interest accrued
Coforge DPA Private Limited - - 3 - -
(-) ) (=) =) ()
Key Management personnel compensation payable
Commission and Sitting fees - - - 1 -
=) ) (=) (3) (=)

Mote : Figures in brackel relale to the previous year.

Terms and conditions :

Rendering and receiving of services toffrom related parties :

The Company has entered into contract with related parties for rendering and receiving of services related to the data processing services and business
information Technology services at arm's length price and in the ordinary course of business. The Service Agreement requires the related parties to
make payment as per agreed terms of paymentinto the cantract,

Outstanding balances of trade receivables or lrade payables to Parent Company, subsidiaries, entity having significant influence and fellow subsidiaries
are unsecured, interest free and require settlement in cash. The amounts are recoverable and payable within credit period from the invoice date. For the
year ended 31 March 2025, the Company has not recorded any impairment on receivables due from related parties (31 March 2024: Nil).
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30. Employee benefits

a) Defined contribution plan

The Company makes Provident Fund contributions to defined contribution plans for qualifying employeses. Under the scheme, the Company is
required to contribute a specified percentage of the payroll costs to fund the benefits. The Company recognised Rs. 85 Mn (Previous Year : Rs. 61
Mn) for Provident Fund contributions and Rs.67 Mn (Previous Year : Rs.58 Mn) for Contribution to Employee's Pension Scheme, 1995 in the
Statermnent of Profit and Loss. The contributions payable to these plans by the Company are at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.

b) Defined benefit plans:

Gratuity
The Graluily scherme is a defined benefit plan, that provides for a lump sum payment at the time of separation, Based on scheme rules the benefits

are calculated on the basis of last drawn salary and the period of service at the time of separation and paid as lumpsum. There is a vesting period
of 5 years.

i) These plans typically expose the company to actuarial risks such as:

1 Investment risk: The fund is managed by insurance company. So,the details of composition of plan assets managed by the fund manager
is not available with the Company. However, the fall in plan assets will increase the defined benefit abligation.

2 Interest rates risk: the defined benefit obligation calculated uses a discount rate based on government bonds. If bond yields fall, the
defined benefit obligation will tend to increase.

3 Salary inflation risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan
parlicipants. As such, increase in salary will increase the defined benefit obligation.

4 Demographic risks: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality
of plan participants both during and after their employment. As the increase in life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the
plan's liability.

ii) The actuarial valuation is carried through an external valuation specialist, registered with Institute of Actuaries of India, having appropriate
gualification and experience with such valuations. The present value of the defined benefit obligation, and the related current service cost and

pasl service cost, were measured using the projected unit credit method.

iii) Amount recognised in statement of profit and loss

For the year ended  For the year ended

Particulars
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Service cost
Current service cost 23 31
Net interest expense 9 10
32 41

Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of these
defined benefit plans are as follows:

Actuarial gains and loss arising from changes in financial assumptions in DBO 0) (32)
Actuarial gains and loss arising form experience adjustments in DBO 4 (1)
Actuarial gains and loss arising from changes in demographic assumptions in DBO (3) -

1 (33)
Total 33 8

(This space has been intentionally left blank)




COFORGE BUSINESS PROCESS SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

iv) Amount recognised in the balance sheet

(All amounts in Rs Mn unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

Present value of defined benefit obligation
Fair value of plan assets

Current portion of the above
Non current portion of the above

166 141
(3) (1)
163 140
29 31
134 109

v] __Movement in present value of defined benefit obligation are as follows:

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

Opening defined obligation
Expenses recognised in statement of profit and loss account
- Current service cost
- Interest expense (income)
Recognised in other comprehensive income
Remeasurement gain / (loss)
- Actuarial gain (loss) arising from:
i} Demoaraphic assumptions
i) Financial assumptions
iii) Experience adjustments -
Acquisition
Benefit payments
Closing defined obligation

141 150
23 31
9 1
(3) =
(0) (32)
4 (2)
10
(18) (17)
166 141

vi] Movement in fair value of the plan assets is as follows:

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

Opening fair value of plan assets
Expenses recognised in statement of profit and loss account

- Expected return on plan assets
Recognised in other comprehensive income
Remeasurement gains / (losses)

- Aclual return on plan assels in excess of the expected return
Contributions by employer (including benefit payments recoverable)
Benefil payments
Actuarial Gain/(Loss) on Plan Assets
Closing fair value of plan assels

1 3
0 0
20 15
(18) (17)
0 (0)
3 1

vii) The major categories of plan assets

For the year ended

For the year ended

Partieulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Assels under insurance schemes 100% 100%
Others 0% 0%

viii) Key actuarial assumptions

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
1. Discount rate 6.61% 7A7%
2. Salary escalation for gratuity 1% 0% for 3 years, 2.5%
thereafter
3. Attrition rate 18% 22%
58 58

4. Retirement age
5. Mortality rate

Indian Assured Lives
Mortality (2012-14)

Ultimale @6le

Indian Assured Lives
Mortality (2012-14)




COFORGE BUSINESS PROCESS SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

ix)

x)

xi)

{(All amounts in Rs Mn unless otherwise stated)

Sensitivity analysis:

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined obligation are discount rate and salary escalation. The sensitivity analysis
below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting
period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

If the discount rate increases (decreases) by 1%, the defined benefit obligation would be decreased by Rs. & million (increased by Rs.7 million)
as at March 31, 2025. (as at March 31, 2024: decrease by Rs. 4 million and increase by Rs. 5 million for increase and decrease by 1%
respectively).

If the expected salary escalation increases (decrease) by 1%, the defined benefit obligation would be increased by Rs. 8 million (decreases by
Rs. 7 million) as at March 31, 2025. (as at March 31, 2024: increase by Rs. 5 million and decrease by Rs.2 million for increase and decrease
by 1% respectively).

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that
the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been calculated using the
projected unit credit method under which If an employee’s service in later years will lead to a materially higher level of benefit than in earlier
years, these benefits are attributed on a straight-line basis.

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years, except lhat base rates have
changed.

There has been no change in the process used by the Company to manage its risks from prior periods.

xii) Expected future cash outflows towards the plan are as follows

Particulars

For the year ended  For the year ended

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Expected benefits for year 1 3z 32
Expected benefits for year 2 29 28
Expected benefits for year 3 27 24
Expecled benefits for year 4 23 21
Expected benefits for year 5 20 17
Expected benefits for year 6 to 10 60 45
Expected benefits for year 10 & above 22 14
Total 213 181

Employee compensated absences

Compensated absences which are expecled to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the employee renders the related
services are recognised as undiscounted liability at the balance sheet date.

Compensaled absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the

employee renders the related services are recognised as an actuarially determined liability at the present value of the defined benefit obligation at
the balance sheet date.

The following amounts reflect leave thal is expected to be taken or paid within next 12 months

Particulars As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
Current leave obligations expected to be settled within next 12 months 19 30
Total 19 30

(This space has been intentionally left blank)




COFORGE BUSINESS PROCESS SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of Standalone financial statements for the vear ended March 31, 2028

31. Income tax expenses
Income lax expense In the statement of profit or loss consist of:

{All amounts in Rs Mn unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

Income tax expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss

Current tax:

In respect of current year
Deferred tax:

In respect of current year
Total

Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income
Deferred tax arising on income and expense recognised in other comprehensive income

- Met loss/ (gain) on remeasuremenl of defined benefit plan
- Cash flow hedge reserve
Total

302

202

(12)

303

()

180

(1)

Reconciliation of Income tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by Company's domeslic lax rate:

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Profit before tax 1,721 1,229
Enacled income tax rate in India 25.17% 2517%
Expected lax expense 433 309
Effect of:

Effect of expenses that Is non-deductible in determining taxable profit B 5]
Effect of tax incentives and concessions (134) (122)
Others (2) (3)
Income tax expense recagnised in statement of profit and loss 303 190

Notes:

(i) The tax rale used for the March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024 reconciliations above is the corporale lax rate of 25.17% payable by corporate entities in India on taxable

profits under section 115BAA of Indian Incame Tax Act.

(This space has been intentionally left blank)




(yuelq yay Ajeuonusiur usag sey aseds siyy|)

“1ead ay) Buunp sjjoid pue snuaaal uj aseasou| Jo Junodge uo pakojdwae [eydes uo uinjal ul asealou| (g
“1ead 8y} Bupnp sap)iqey| sses| ul esealou Jo Junoade uo dn suob sey opes Aynbe 1qeq (g
'saplliqel| xe} JusLng pue saiji|iqel| ssea ‘ajqeded apes| uj 8seasoul JO JUNCDJE LD S| OfJEJ JUSLND U B8sealgaq (|

! syleway

= = S]UBWISaAU| awoou| pusplalg sjuswisaau| uo wmay|o
%l %LE92 %S EE pado|dws |euden saxe] pue jsalajul alojeq Bujuieg () pefAojdwa |eyden uo uiniay|e
Yol- %02 .2 %9E'SZ anusaay Xe} Jalje J)joid 18N onel yoid jaN|g
9,9~ Z8'e BL'E |lended) bupopp anuanay oljes Janouin) |endea jan|
ot 66°C 60°E so|qeAed spel| sbelsny| sesusdxs 1aylo pue sadlAes Jo S8selaing oljel lanouin | s|jgeAed apel| |g
o e 66°G 851 s|qeAie0ay] apel| abelaAy anuanay oljel 1saouln | 8|genladal apel] |g
Y% %G¥ 61 9Oy LG Alnb3 s iepjoyaieys abelany saxe] Jaje sjjold 18N Ainba uo wnay [y
AL ZeR £/'B 82IAl8g Jqa(Q 90IAI8S Jgap 1o} a|qe|ieae sbulule] ojjel sbelsaoo aoialas 1qaq|e
%29 90°0 0L'0 Aunb3 s Jspjoyaleys (sajliqel| ases| sjussaidal) 1geQ [ejoL () ones Aynb3 1g8q|z
%62 9v'e P sajligert jusling S}esse jualng (1) onesjuaung||
aoueuep | ¥20Z 'LE U2IBN | SZ0Z ‘LT Yy2iep Jojeuljwouag lojerawinnN sie|nalled
je sy 1e sy

#20Z ‘L€ Yol pue GZOZ ‘L€ Yyole papua Jeak ay} Joj soljed [eonhjeue ale Buimol|oj sy

sisfjeuy oney zg

SZ0Z ‘L€ Yaley papua leak 8} Jo} S}uaWaje}s |eIoueLl duojepue)g Jo Jed Buluio) sejoN
A3LINIT ILVAI4d SNOILNTOS SS300¥d SSIANISNY 3940400



COFORGE BUSINESS PROCESS SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Rs Mn unless otherwise stated)

33 Contingent liabilities

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Contingent liabilities
a) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt
(i) Disputed income tax * 110 117
The above amounts are based on the notice of demand or the assessment orders by relevant
authorities and the company is contesting these claims with respective authorities.

b) Other money for which Company is contingently liable
(i) Bonus payable as per Payment of Bonus Act,1965 for FY 2014-15 (Refer Note 19 19
below)

Note: Bonus payable as per amendment to the Payment of Bonus (Amendment) Act of 2015
for the financial year 2014-2015 has not been provided on account of stay received from
various high courts.

Commitments
a) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not 1 3
provided for (net of advances)

* During the year, the Company received final assessment order dated March 12, 2025, of passed under section 143(3) for AY 2022-23
(FY 2021-22) wherein the tax officer has not proposed any new adjustment. The order only confirmed the addition which was made by
CPC on account of disallowance of 80M deduction of INR 298Mn which has resulted in a tax demand of INR 106 Mn (including interest of
INR 31 Mn). Appeal before Commissioner Appeal (First Appellate Authority) has been filed against aforesaid order as a part of the
regular litigation route, The Company believes that it will be able to substantiate its claim before the appellate authorities with proper
documents/ explanation / evidence / calculations and therefore believes that no provision is required in the books of accounts against
such disallowance.

34, Segment reporting

As per Ind AS 108 - Operating Segments, where the financial report contains both the consolidated financial statements of a parent as well as
the parent's separate financial statements, segment information is required only in the consolidated financial statements, accordingly no
segment information is disclosed in these standalone financial statements of the Company.

35. Micro, Small and Medium enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act)-Section 22

Trade payables Asat A5 at
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(1) The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining to unpaid to any supplier
as at the end of each accounting year 3 3

(2) The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 18, along with the amount - -
of the payment made to supplier beyond the appointed date during each accounting year

(3) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment ( which - -
have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding interest
specified under this Act.

(4) The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year & - -

(5) The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years - -
until such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to small enterprise, for
the purpose of disallowance as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act
Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information
available with the Company. This has been relied upon by the auditors.




COFORGE BUSINESS PROCESS SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Rs Mn unless otherwise stated)

36. Corporate Social Responsibility
As per the requirements of section 135 of the Companies Act 2013, the Company has made contributions as below. The same is in line with
activities specified in Schedule VIl of the Companies Act 2013,

For the year ended For the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
a) Amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 24 21
b) Amount of expendilure incurred on purpose olher than conslruclion/acquisilion of asset 24 21

c) Excess spend of prior years set off during the year -
d) Shortfall/(Excess) at the end of the year * [(d) = (a)-(b)-(c)] - -
e) Total of previous years shortfall - -
f) Nature of CSR activities made during the year : Environmental conservation under rural development, Education and skills development

and employability.

37. Employee stock option plan

Certain employees of the Company are entitled to stock options granted by Coforge Limited (the Company's Parent Company) under the
Coforge Employee Stock Option Plan 2005, in relation to services received by the Company. The Company accrues for the cost of
employees stock option determined under the fair value method over the vesting period of the option, which is reimbursed to the Parent
Company. During the year ended March 31, 2025 Rs 14 Mn (March 31, 2024: Nil) was charged to the Company by the Parent Company and
accordingly the expenses towards Coforge Employee Stock Option Plan 2005 for current year is Rs. 14 Mn (March 31,2024: Nil).

38. Following previous year numbers have been reclassified to conform to current years classifications
a Balance with Government authorities included other non current assets now reclass to other current assets INR 115 Mn,
The above mentioned changes have been made to align with group financial statement presentation and disclosure.

39.The Company has been using accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit
log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software, except that audit trail feature
can not be enabled at the database level insofar as it relates to accounting software. Further no instance of audit trail feature being tampered
with was noted in respect of accounting software.Additionally, the audit trail has been preserved as per the statutory requirements for record
retention.

40. During the Financial year 2018-20, the Company, based on the results of internal findings had appointed a legal counsel/external agency
to carry out a fact-finding investigation relating to practices of vendor favoritism, higher rates negotiated with certain vendors, soliciting of
clienis by certain ex-employees during their period of service with the Company etc. Based on the report issued by external counsel, the
Company filed a civil suit in the court of the Honorable City Civil Judge, Bangalore against certain vendors and ex-employees (collectively
“the defendants") of the Company in December 2019. The Company has sought damages to the tune of Rs. 55.61 million arising out of
overcharge, cost of overstaffing, loss of revenue, breach of trust, breach of contract etc. from the defendants, along with interest. Subsequent
to the Company having filed the aforementioned suit, the defendants initiated proceedings before the National Company Law Tribunal in
respect of allegedly due amounts. The claims in the said subsequent proceedings commenced by the defendants are connected with and
disputed in the aforementioned suit.In previous year ended March 31, 2022, the NCLT dismissed the case filed by the defendants. The
defendats have filed an appeal with the Kamatka high court againt the order of NCLT. In current year, Coforge has withdrawn the case and
the procedure of refund of court fees is in motion.

41, Events after the reporting period
There were no significant reportable subsequent events that occurred after the balance sheet date but before standalone financial statements
were issued.

42. In view of the performance of the Company for the financial year under review, The Board declared interim dividend for FY 2024-25 @
INR 668/- per Equity Share (amounting to INR 603 Mn) on 28th June, 2024 and the same was paid to the members whose names appeared
in the Register of Members on said date.




COFORGE BUSINESS PROCESS SOLUTIONS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(All amounts in Rs Mn unless otherwise stated)

43. a) No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company to or in any other person or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified In any
manner whatsaever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries.

b) No funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities("Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or Indireclly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

44 The Company does not have any transactions or balances at the year end with the companies struck off by Registrar of Companies
('ROC") uls 248 of the Companies Act,2013.

45, The Company Is the subsidiary of Coforge Limited (Parent Company), it meets the applicable conditions as per Para 4 of Ind AS 110 -
Consolidated Financial Statements and hence consolidated financial stalements are not applicable to the Company.

46, Approval of standalone financial statements
The standalone financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on May 2, 2025.
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